
 

 

 

 
     June 16, 2010 

 

Via Electronic Transmission 

 

Lamar McKay 

Chairman and President  

BP America, Inc 

501 Westlake Park Boulevard 

Houston, TX 77079 

 

Dear Mr. McKay: 

 

 As the ranking member of the Committee on Finance, I have a constitutional duty 

to conduct oversight into U.S. government regulated programs that directly impact the 

safety, security, and economic livelihood of American citizens.  Additionally, the oil spill 

liability trust fund and related taxes are included in the Internal Revenue Code, as are tax 

incentives directed at deep water drilling.  I am writing about the concerns I have 

regarding the recent explosion and subsequent oil spill at the Deepwater Horizon oil rig 

in the Gulf of Mexico.  

 

 Thank you for your recent response on June 9, to my letter of May 17, 2010.  In 

that letter, I asked BP America (BP) a number of questions about operations in the Gulf 

of Mexico and the recent oil spill at the Deepwater Horizon oil rig.  I remain concerned 

that BP has not provided a complete response to my letter and may have withheld 

pertinent documents. 

 

 In Question 10, I asked, “Please explain, in detail, who made the decision to replace 

the mud in the drill hole with seawater.  Provide any pertinent documents and/or 

communications.” BP responded:  

 

Because investigations into the Deepwater Horizon incident are ongoing, it would 

be premature to speculate regarding specific decisions.  In addition, certain third 

parties may have in their possession certain information that is relevant to this 

request but to which BP does not have access. 

 

 Every American knows that the investigation of the Deepwater Horizon spill is 

ongoing; however, there is nothing “premature” about my request, and I am not asking 

BP to “speculate.”   Further, any information allegedly possessed by unnamed third 

parties is irrelevant.  I asked your company these questions and I request that you produce 

all documents immediately. 
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 In a separate question, I asked BP about the blowout preventers on the other rigs 

that it operates in the Gulf.  I became concerned because The Times-Picayune reported 

that the Minerals Management Service (MMS) regulation 250.416(e)
1
 requires drillers to 

submit proof that the blowout preventer they are using to shut off a well will have enough 

power to shear a drill pipe in case of an emergency.  However, the MMS drilling 

inspector, who examined the BP Deepwater Horizon rig application, stated that he was 

not aware of any such requirement.  He added that he has never demanded such proof 

from any of the more than 100 applications his office reviews each year.  

 

 Specifically, I requested that BP “provide documentation that BP is in compliance 

with MMS regulation 250.416 (e) for all oil rigs owned/leased/operated by BP in the Gulf 

of Mexico.”  I received the following response: 

 

BP has submitted applications for permits to drill in accordance with the process 

prescribed by MMS officials, including submission of all applications, forms, and 

pertinent documentation required and/or requested by such officials.  All 

applications submitted by BP in accordance with MMS regulations contained at 

30 C.F.R. § 250 are reviewed and approved by MMS officials prior to the 

operation of all rigs leased and/or operated by BP in the Gulf of Mexico.  Indeed, 

as required by MMS regulations (21 C.F.R. § 250.410), BP obtains written 

approval from the MMS District Manager before it begins drilling any well or 

performing similar operations as provided for in the regulations.  BP is not aware 

of any MMS practice requiring an applicant to attach to its initial application 

proof of the strength of the blind shear rams on the blowout preventer (which is 

the subject of 30 C.F.R. § 250.416 (e)).  In past cases when MMS officials have  

                                                 
1
 TITLE 30 - MINERAL RESOURCES 

 

CHAPTER II - MINERALS MANAGEMENT SERVICE, DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 

 

SUBCHAPTER B - OFFSHORE 

 

PART 250 - OIL AND GAS AND SULPHUR OPERATIONS IN THE OUTER CONTINENTAL SHELF 

 

subpart d - OIL AND GAS DRILLING OPERATIONS 

 

250.416 - What must I include in the diverter and BOP descriptions? 

 

You must include in the diverter and BOP descriptions: (a) A description of the diverter system and its 

operating procedures; (b) A schematic drawing of the diverter system (plan and elevation views) that 

shows: (1) The size of the annular BOP installed in the diverter housing; (2) Spool outlet internal 

diameter(s); (3) Diverter-line lengths and diameters; burst strengths and radius of curvature at each turn; 

and (4) Valve type, size, working pressure rating, and location; (c) A description of the BOP system and 

system components, including pressure ratings of BOP equipment and proposed BOP test pressures; (d) A 

schematic drawing of the BOP system that shows the inside diameter of the BOP stack, number and type of 

preventers, location of choke and kill lines, and associated valves; and (e) Information that shows the blind-

shear rams installed in the BOP stack (both surface and subsea stacks) are capable of shearing the drill pipe 

in the hole under maximum anticipated surface pressures. 

 

[68 FR 8423, Feb. 20, 2003] 

 

Read more: http://cfr.vlex.com/vid/250-416-include-diverter-bop-descriptions-19694826#ixzz0r1z3gzw3 
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raised any questions or additional requests relating to shear ram strength during 

the application review and approval process, BP has provided the additional 

information.   

 

I find it very disturbing that BP asserts that the “practice” in oil drilling is to avoid 

current laws designed to keep our beaches safe.  And I am outraged that MMS is looking 

the other way.  At this time, I ask again that you provide documentation that BP is in 

compliance with MMS regulation 250.416 (e) for all oil rigs owned/leased/operated by 

BP in the Gulf of Mexico.  Furthermore, I demand any communications between BP and 

any employees at MMS that may  confirm that MMS allowed BP to violate the law, 

receive a waiver from applicable law and/or not comply with MMS regulation 250.416 

(e). 

 

 Additionally, I previously requested all documents and communications regarding 

the amount and/or rate of the oil leaking from the Deepwater Horizon rig.  When the spill 

first occurred, BP told the press on numerous occasions that the size of the spill was 

approximately 1,000 barrels per day.  For several weeks after, BP then told the press that 

the spill was around 5,000 barrels per day.  For instance, on May 22, Bloomberg reported 

that Doug Suttles, BP‟s chief operating officer for exploration and production, said 

“5,000 barrel-a-day rate is still the „best estimate‟ of the amount coming from the well.”
2
  

 

 However in an undated document provided to me by BP, BP wrote that after the 

sinking of the Deepwater Horizon, an estimate was made, in the light of the actual 

situation, as it was understood by BP at that time.  “An absolute worst case flow rate of 

60,000 barrels per day was calculated.” BP also states in its memo that a more reasonable 

scenario is 40,000 barrels a day.  [ATTACHMENT A]  It is not clear to me when exactly 

BP calculated a worst case scenario of 60,000 barrels per day, but certainly Americans 

have a right to know that BP made these estimates, the date these estimates were 

determined and why they were not disclosed at that time.   

 

 Certainly I have not yet seen reports that BP calculated a worst case scenario of 

60,000 barrels per day.  In fact I have not seen any reports of 60,000 barrels a day until 

the U.S. Government released an estimate just a few short days ago.  

 

 Accordingly, I request the following. 

 

1) Please explain when BP calculated a worst case scenario of 60,000 barrels.  

Please provide pertinent documents. 

 

2) Confirm, in writing, that BP is to the best of its knowledge in compliance 

with current law, MMS regulation 250.416 (e), for all oil rigs 

owned/leased/operated by BP in the Gulf of Mexico. 

 

 

 

                                                 
2
 Jim Polson and Mark Chediak, “BP May Attempt to Plug Oil Leak With Mud Next Week (Update2)” 

Bloomberg, May 22, 2010. 
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3) Provide any correspondence between BP and any employees at MMS that 

may confirm that MMS allowed BP to receive a waiver from applicable 

law (MMS regulation 21 C.F.R. § 250.410(e)), need not comply with 

applicable law, remain in violation of applicable law or need not comply 

with all or part of any applicable law. 

 

 In cooperating with the Committee‟s review, no documents, records, data or 

information related to these matters shall be destroyed, modified, removed or otherwise 

made inaccessible to the Committee.   

 

Please provide these documents to me no later than June 18, 2010.  All documents 

responsive to this request should be sent electronically in PDF format to 

Brian_Downey@finance-rep.senate.gov.  If you have any questions, please do not 

hesitate to contact Janet Drew or Paul Thacker of my staff at (202) 224-4515. 

 
 

Sincerely, 

 

                   
  Charles E. Grassley 

Ranking Member  

  

 

Attachment 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 












